
NOTICE OF 13th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway 
Limited will be held on Thursday, September 28, 2023 at 11:30 AM at Unit No. 307A, 3rd Floor, Worldmark 
2, Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality District, Delhi Aerocity, Near IGI Airport, New Delhi-110037 to transact the 
following business:-  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
  
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2023, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and 
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of Board of Directors 
and Auditor's thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company including the balance 
sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of profit & loss, the cash flow statement for the year ended on 
that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors, thereon be and are hereby received, 
considered and adopted.” 

 
2. To appoint Mr. Ranveer Sharma (DIN-02483364) who retires by rotation as a director at this meeting and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment by passing the following resolution as Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, if any along with the rules made thereunder, Mr. Ranveer Sharma (DIN-
02483364), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
3. To Consider and Approve The Remuneration of The Cost Auditors For The Financial Year 2023-2024 
 

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, M/s Sandeep & Associates, Cost Accountants, New Delhi 
bearing Firm Registration No. 101523 appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for FY 2023-24 
be paid a remuneration not exceeding Rs 45000/- plus service tax and reimbursement of out of pocket 
expenses incurred by him in connection with the aforesaid audit. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary be and are 
hereby authorized to do all, deeds and things which are necessary for the aforesaid appointment and to 
send the necessary intimation in prescribed form to Registrar of Companies.” 

 
4. To consider and amend the Articles of Association of the Company 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 
Resolution:  



 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
applicable provisions read with the applicable rules and regulations made there under including any 
amendment, re-enactment or statutory modifications thereof, subject to the approval of Registrar of 
companies, the Articles of Associations of the Company (AOA) be and are hereby altered by inserting 
the following clause as under:- 
 
103.1.2 “Notwithstanding the above, If at any time the Company issues debentures or bonds or 
such other instruments, the debenture trustee and/or the investors shall have the right to appoint 
one or more Director or Directors (Nominee Director(s)) to the Board of the Company, and to 
remove from office any Nominee Director so appointed and to appoint another in his/her place or 
in the place a Director so appointed who resigns or otherwise vacates his office, in accordance with 
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, applicable law, regulatory or listing requirements and terms 
and conditions of such debenture documents. 
Any such appointment or removal shall be made in writing and shall be served at the office of the 
Company. 
The Nominee Director(s) shall neither be required to hold any qualification share nor be liable to 
retire by rotation and shall continue in office for so long as the debt subsists. 
The Nominee Director shall also be appointed as a member of any committee of the Board and shall 
not be liable for any act or omission of the Company. 
The Nominee Director shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of other non-executive 
directors and the sitting fees, expenses as payable to other directors on the Board and any other 
fees, commission, monies or remuneration in any form payable to the non-executive directors, 
which shall be to the account of the Company.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally 
authorised to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution 
and to do all such, deeds, matters and things, including delegate such authority, as may be considered 
necessary, proper or expedient in order to give effect to the above resolution. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to sign all such other documents, in each 
case, as they or any of them may deem necessary, proper or desirable (including without limitation 
making the appropriate e-filing with the Registrar of Companies, New Delhi/Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs), in connection with the adoption of the new set of Articles of Association of the Company, as 
approved by the Board and the members of the Company and/or generally to give effect to the 
foregoing resolutions. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally 
authorised to issue/provide certified true copies of these resolution.” 

Date: 04.09.2023 
Place: New Delhi                      

By Order of the Board 
                                   for Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited

                  Sd/- 
                  Srishti Garg

        ACS: 57030                                           
Company Secretary 

  



NOTES 

 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, in respect of the business 
as set out in the AGM Notice is annexed hereto. 
 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
on a poll instead of himself/ herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The 
instrument appointing the proxy should however be deposited at the registered office of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

 
3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not 

more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member 
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 
shareholder. 
 

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 
 

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act and such statutory records and registers, as are required to be 
kept open for inspection under the Companies Act, 2013, shall be available for inspection by the 
Members between 10.00 a.m. and 12 noon upto the date of the Meeting and also at the AGM. 
 

6. The relevant records and documents connected with the businesses set out in the Notice are available 
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days during office hours (except 
Saturdays, Sundays and Public holidays) between 10.00 a.m. and 12 noon upto the date of the Meeting 
and also at the AGM. 
 

7. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Notice of the Meeting. 
 

8. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
will be entitled to vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  



Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
Item no. 2 
 
Pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, one third of the directors who are liable to retire by 
rotation, shall retire from office at the Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Ranveer Sharma, Director 
of the Company, shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and he, being eligible, has 
offered himself for re-appointment. Mr. Sharma is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in 
terms of Section 164 of the Act. 
 
Details of Mr. Sharma pursuant to the provisions of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is given below: 
 

Name of the Director and DIN Mr. Ranveer Sharma (DIN: 02483364) 

Age 48 years 

Qualifications Degree in Masters of Business Administration from London 
Business School. 

Experience / Brief Profile/ Expertise in 
specific functional areas 

Mr. Ranveer Sharma aged 48 years is an experienced 
business leader with a successful record of transforming and 
growing businesses in a number of sectors. Mr. Sharma is 
Managing Director at Vaillant Capital Partners, a specialist 
investment management and advisory firm focused on a 
select group of institutional investors and family offices for 
foreign direct investments in India across Infrastructure, 
Real Estate, Manufacturing, and FMCG sectors. He is an 
Experienced business leader with a successful record of 
transforming and growing businesses in a number of sectors. 
He holds a degree in Masters of Business Administration 
from London Business School. 

Date of first appointment on the Board 06/10/2020 

Number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year 

4 (Four) 

Directorships held in other companies 
(Except Section 8 and Foreign Companies) 

Shree Balaji Gums And Spice Stuff Private Limited, Axience 
Consulting Private Limited, Bay of Bengal Gateway Terminal 
Private Limited, Oriental Pathways (Indore) Private Limited, 
OSE Hungund Hospet Highways Private Limited, Etawah-
Chakeri (Kanpur) Highway Private Limited, Oriental Nagpur 
Bye Pass Construction Private Limited, Biaora to Dewas 
Highway Limited, OIT Infrastructure Management Limited and 
Nilons Enterprises Private Limited 

Memberships/Chairmanships of 
Committees of other Boards 

Mr. Sharma is the member of CSR committee of Oriental 
Nagpur Byepass Construction Private Limited and Oriental 
Pathways (Indore) Private Limited and member of Audit 
committee, Risk Management committee and Stakeholders 



Relationship committee of OIT Infrastructure Management 
Limited. 

Listed entities from which the person has 
resigned from the directorship in the past 
three years 

Nil 

Number of shares held in the Company 
(including shareholding as a beneficial 
owner) 

Nil 

Terms and conditions of re-appointment 
including remuneration 

Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation. 

Remuneration last drawn (FY 2021-22) NA 

Nature of expertise in specific functional 
areas 

Mr. Sharma’s particular strengths are in strategy, 
performance improvements, and corporate turnarounds. He 
possesses a strong knowledge of the governing bylaws and 
has wide experience in creating and implementing company 
policies, procedures, and corporate governance standards. 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Managers and Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Bank 

None 

 
The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members as an Ordinary Resolution as set out in 
Item No. 2 of the notice for the appointment of Mr. Ranveer Sharma as a Non-Executive Director, liable to 
retire by rotation. 
 
Except Mr. Sharma, being the appointee, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or 
their respective relatives is/ are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution. 
 
Item no. 3 
 
The Board, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has approved at their meeting held on May 22, 
2023, the appointment of M/s Sandeep & Associates, Cost Accountants, New Delhi bearing Firm Registration 
No. 101523 to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for FY 2023-24. 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for FY 2023-24 is required 
to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, the Members’ approval is sought for passing 
ordinary resolution for ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2024, as set out in the Resolution No.3 of the Notice. 
 
None of the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise in the said Resolutions. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No.3 of the Notice for 
approval by the Members. 
 



Item no. 4 
 
As per the recent amendment in Regulation 23(6) of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021), the issuer whose debt securities are listed as on the date of publication of the  SEBI  (Issue  
and  Listing  of  Non - Convertible  Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023 in the official gazette, shall 
ensure that its Articles of Association require its Board of Directors to appoint the person nominated by the 
debenture trustee(s) in terms of clause (e) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 15 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 as a director on its Board of Directors and 
has to thus amend its Articles of Association  to comply with the same, on or before September 30, 2023. 
 
For information of the Shareholders, clause (e) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 15 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 is reproduced below: 
 
“It shall be the duty of every debenture trustee to appoint a nominee director on the Board of the company 
in the event of: 
(i) two consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the debenture holders; or 
(ii) default in creation of security for debentures; or 
(iii) default in redemption of debentures.” 
 
Since the above provision is required to be included from a regulatory perspective, the Board of directors of 
the company in its meeting held on May 22, 2023, has decided (subject to prior approval of Shareholders) 
to alter the articles of the Company by inserting a new clause as 103.1.2 to give effect to the latest 
amendment mentioned above.  
 
It is further informed that the proposed amendment will be in accordance of the provisions (clause 10.5) of 
the Trust deed of IM and will not prompt for any further amendment in the same. 
 
None of the Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends the resolution proposing amendment of Articles of the Company, as set 
out in Item No. 4 for approval of the Members by way of Special Resolution. 
 
 
Date: 04.09.2023 
Place: New Delhi                      

By Order of the Board 
                                   for Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited

                  Sd/- 
                  Srishti Garg

        ACS: 57030                                           
Company Secretary 

                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CIN: U45400DL2010PLC203649 
Name of the company: ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED 

Registered office: Unit No. 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2, Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality 
District, Delhi Aerocity, near IGI Airport, New Delhi - 110037 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 
Please complete the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, Joint Shareholders 
may obtain additional Attendance Slip on request.  

  
Ledger Folio No./DP/Client ID 
 
 

 
 
I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company on Thursday, 
September 28, 2023 at 11:30 AM at Unit No. 307A, 3rd Floor, Worldmark 2, Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality 
District, Delhi Aerocity, Near IGI Airport, New Delhi-110037   
 
 
 
………………………………………………………..  ……………………………………………………….. 
(Name & Address of the Member(s)/Proxy)                  (Signature of the Member/Proxy) 
 
  
Note: 
 
1. Only Members or their proxies will be allowed to attend the Meeting. 
2. Bodies Corporate who are members, may attend the meeting through their duly authorized representative 
appointed under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013. A copy of resolution/authorization should be 
deposited with the Company. 
3. Please bring with you copy of Notice to the meeting together with this Admission Slip 
  



Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN: U45400DL2010PLC203649 
Name of the company: ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED 
Registered office: Unit No. 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2, Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality 
District, Delhi Aerocity, near IGI Airport, New Delhi – 110037 

 
Name of the member (s):          
Registered address:  
E-mail Id:  
Folio No/ Client Id:  
DP ID: 

 

  

 

 

 

 
I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint  
 
1. Name: ……………………………………….…… Address: …………………..………………………………………… 
 E-mail Id: ………………………………………….…  
 
Signature:………………………………………., or failing him  
 
2. Name: …………………………………………. Address:………………………………………………………  
E-mail Id: …………………………………………….. 
 
Signature:……………………………….…….,  
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 13th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company on Thursday, September 28, 2023 at 11:30 AM at Unit No. 307A, 3rd Floor, 
Worldmark 2, Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality District, Delhi Aerocity, Near IGI Airport, New Delhi-110037 and 
at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:  
 
Resolution No. 
 
Ordinary Business: 

1. Consider and Adopt Financial Statement and Reports of Board of Directors and Auditor's thereon for 
the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023. 

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Ranveer Sharma, Director of the Company 
 

Special Business: 
3. To consider and approve the Remuneration of Cost Auditor’s for FY 2023-24 
4. To consider and approve the alteration of articles of the Company 

 
 

 
Signed this _____ day of……… 20….  
 
Signature of shareholder _________ 
 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s)___________ 

 
Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 
 



 
Note:  
 
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 
2. A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. 
 
3. A person appointed as Proxy shall act on behalf of not more than 50 (fifty) Members and holding not more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. However, a Member holding more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as 
Proxy and such person shall not act as Proxy for any other person or Member. 
  



Route Map: 
 
From: Connaught Place, New Delhi 
To: Unit No. 307A, 3rd Floor, Worldmark 2, Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality District, Delhi Aerocity, Near IGI 
Airport, New Delhi-110037 
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BOARD’S REPORT 
                       
To the Members, 
                            
The Directors are pleased to present the 13th Annual Report of Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited (the 
Company) on the business and operations of the Company along with the audited financial statements for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
1. Financial Results 
 
The financial performance of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is summarized 
below: 
                                                                                                                                                

Particulars Standalone 
For the year ended 31st March 
2023 

For the year ended 31st March 
2022 

Net Sales/Revenue from Operations  4,16,53,34,259 11,84,56,81,039 

Other Income 90,51,23,543 75,75,68,585 

Total Revenue 5,07,04,57,802 12,60,32,49,624 

Total Operating Expenditure  2,81,84,88,947 10,17,43,41,428 

Gross Profit after Depreciation, 
Interest but before Tax  

2,25,19,68,855 2,42,89,08,196 

Tax Expenses 12,00,27,905 77,89,89,101 

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 2,13,19,40,950 1,64,99,19,095 

 
Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) 
 
The Financial Statements of your Company have been in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 
 
2. State of Company’s affair 
 
The Company is formed for specific purpose of undertaking Projects related to “Four Laning of Nagpur-
Saoner-Betul Section of NH-69 from km. 3.000 to km. 59.300 in the state of Maharashtra and km. 137.00 to 
km. 257.400 in the State of Madhya Pradesh on DBFOT on Annuity Basis receivable on semi-annual basis. 
 
Overall operating performance of the Company has been satisfactory and the project is being managed, 
operated and maintained as per the relevant provisions of the Concession Agreement. The Company is 
timely receiving semi-annuities payment from NHAI. 
 
The details of gross annuity received since the last report of the board is as follows: 
 
 

Annuity No. Date  Amount Whether received 
on time 



Sixteenth 11.10.2022 2,90,80,00,000/- Yes 
Seventeenth 12.04.2023 2,90,80,00,000/- Yes 

 
3. Change in Registered Office of the Company 
 
The Registered office of the Company has been changed from ‘OSE Commercial Block, Hotel ALOFT, Asset 
5B, Aerocity, Hospitality District, IGI Airport, New Delhi - 110037’ to ‘Unit No. 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2, 
Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality District, Delhi Aerocity, Near IGI Airport, New Delhi – 110037’ with effect from 
December 12, 2022. 
 
4. Dividend 
 
The Board of Directors of your company has paid interim dividend of Rs. 1,66,56,14,856 during the financial 
year under review. 
 
5. Deposits 

 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 
6. Change in the nature of business: 
 
There was no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the period under review. 
 
7. Share Capital 
 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the paid up equity share capital of the Company 
and the present paid up equity share capital is Rs 18,13,45,000/- divided into 1,81,34,500 equity shares of 
Rs. 10/-each. 
 
8. Dematerialization of Shares 
 
As on March 31, 2023, 100% of the shareholding of the Company is in Demat mode. 
 
9. Debentures 
 
During the financial year 2016-17 and 2017-18, the Company had issued Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 
to the tune of Rs. 2925.36 Crores under Series A, B & C on private placement; which are listed on the Debt 
segment of National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company is in compliance with all reserve 
requirements as per applicable law SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
& Debenture Trust Deed. 
 
10. Transfer to Reserves  
 
During the Financial year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount  to the Reserves and 
Surplus account.  
 
 



11. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
 
There were no unclaimed Dividend(s) in the previous year which were required to be transferred to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Account during the year as per the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Act. 
 
12. Material Changes Affecting Financial Position 
 
There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, which has 
occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2023 and the date of this 
Report.  
 
Further, no change in the documents related to the issue of Non-convertible Debentures has been carried 
out during the Financial Year under review that may adversely affect the rights of debenture holders. 
 
13. Annual Return 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Annual Return as 
on March 31, 2023 is available on the Company’s website http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/ . 

14. Directors/Key Managerial Personnel and changes thereof. 
 

Currently, the composition of the Board is in compliance with the requirements under the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable on the Company. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, Non-
Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors. During the financial year 2022-23, Mr. 
Abhishek Sehgal (DIN: 09771954) was appointed as Additional Director (Whole time director designated as 
Executive Director and Chairman) and Chief Financial Officer of the Company on February 13, 2023. He was 
further regularized in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 10, 2023, where he was appointed as 
a Whole time Director of the Company for a period of 5 consecutive years, with effect from 13 February, 
2023 up to 12 February, 2028 (both days inclusive). 
 
Mr. Nikhil Dhingra (DIN: 07835556) resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. January 30, 2023 and 
Mr. Vikas Mohan resigned from the position of Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. February 13, 
2023, due to their personal reasons. 
 
Further, during the financial year under review, due to some personal reasons Mr. Prabhjot Singh resigned 
from the position of Company Secretary w.e.f September 29, 2022 and Ms. Srishti Garg was appointed in his 
place to fill the vacancy as Company Secretary and Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 
Company with effect from November 12, 2022. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ranveer Sharma (DIN: 
02483364), Non-Executive Director of the Company, retires by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for 
re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
All the present Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the criteria of 
independence laid down under Section 149(6) of the of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have also confirmed 
that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that 
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. 
 



The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, 
experience and expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity. In terms of Section 150 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent 
Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the data bank of Independent Directors created 
and maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar. 
 
Mr. Sharad Kumar Singh, CEO, Mr. Abhishek Sehgal, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Ms. Srishti Garg, 
Company Secretary (CS), are the KMPs of the Company. 
 
15. Meetings of the Board of Directors 

The Board of the Company has met 4 times (Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held dated 
(24/05/2022, 08/08/2022, 12/11/2022 & 13/02/2023). The intervening gap between two consecutive 
meetings was not more than the period as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of such 
meetings are given in Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
All the necessary statutory requirements under the Act have been complied with for convening the 
aforementioned meetings. 
 
16. Committees of the Board 
 
The Board has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific areas. 
These includes Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee, 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The details with 
respect to composition, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of Committees constituted under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations are given in the Corporate Governance Report forming 
part of this Annual Report. 
 
All the recommendations of the Audit Committee made during the period under review were duly accepted 
by the Board. 
 
17. Manner of Evaluation of Performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors 
 
In order to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Governance, the Companies Act, 2013 requires a statement 
indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own 
performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) of the Board reassessed the framework, methodology and criteria for evaluating the 
performance of the Board as a whole, including Board committee(s), as well as performance of each 
Director(s)/Chairman. 
 
The performance evaluation of the Board as a whole and its Committees as well as the performance of each 
Director individually, including the Chairman was carried out by the entire Board of Directors. The 
performance evaluation of the Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors was carried out 
by the Independent Directors in their meeting held for the current FY. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 
17A. Policy on Appointment of Directors & their Remuneration 
 
The Board has framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, KMP, Senior Management and 
their remuneration. The Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of 
this Annual Report. 



 
18. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 
 
As per Section 186(11) your Company is exempted from compliance of provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 being engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities.  
 
19. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties 
 
As required under Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a ‘Policy 
on Related Party Transactions’ for proper conduct and documentation of all related party transactions. The 
same is available on the website of the Company at http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/ . 
 
All related party transactions during the year have been entered into in the ordinary course of business and 
on an arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company, during the FY 
under review, with Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other designated persons which may have 
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.  
 
Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the members to Notes to the financial statement which 
sets out related party disclosures. 
 
Further, there were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the 
prescribed Form AOC–2 does not form a part of this report. 
 
20. Auditors and Auditor’s Report 
 
A. Statutory Auditors 
 
The Statutory Auditor of the Company, M/s. KG Somani & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi bearing 
firm Registration no. - 006591N were appointed for 5 years as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold 
office from the 10th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.  
 
The requirements to place the matter relating to appointment of Statutory Auditor for ratification by 
members at every Annual General Meeting is done away with vide notification dated May 07, 2018 issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate  Affairs, New Delhi. Accordingly, no resolution is proposed for ratification of 
appointment of Statutory Auditors, who were appointment in the Annual General Meeting held on 10th 
Annual General Meeting. 

The report of the Statutory Auditors for the FY 2022-23 forms part of this Report. The Statutory Auditors 
Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Notes to the Accounts referred 
to in the Auditors Report are self - explanatory and therefore do not call for any further explanation.  

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they continue to satisfy the eligibility norms and independence 
criteria as prescribed by Companies Act, 2013. 

 
B. Cost Auditors 
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 
framed thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s Sandeep & Associates, Cost 



Accountants bearing Firm Registration No. 101523 as the Cost Auditors of the Company, for conducting the 
audit of cost records for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.  
 
Further, as per Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have approved the re-appointment of 
M/s Sandeep & Associates, Cost Accountants, as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the F.Y. 2023-2024. 
The remuneration proposed to be paid to them requires ratification of the shareholders of the Company. In 
view of this, your approval for payment of remuneration to Cost Auditors is being sought at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, a resolution seeking approval by members for the remuneration 
payable to M/s. Sandeep & Associates is included in the Notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
C. Secretarial Auditors 
 
The Board had appointed M/s C Gaur & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice as its Secretarial 
Auditors, to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2022-23. The Company has provided all 
assistance, facilities, documents, records and clarifications etc. to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting 
their audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23, is annexed as “Annexure - 1”, 
forming part of this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark except for the following: 
 
1. The Company was not in compliance with the Regulation 50(1) of the SEBI (LODR), in respect of the shorter 
intimation was given regarding Board Meeting held on May 24, 2022 in which proposal for approval of 
financial results was considered. 
Management Reply: Initially the BM was scheduled on May 14, 2022, for which sufficient notice was given 
to the Stock Exchange. However, the meeting was rescheduled to be held on May 24, 2022, due to non-
availability of necessary documents/request of director and the announcement of the said postponement 
was given immediately on May 23, 2022. 
 
The Secretarial Compliance Report as prescribed by SEBI is annexed as “Annexure - 2”, forming part of this 
Report. 
 
D. Internal Auditors 
 
Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Account) Rules 2014 framed 
thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers Private Limited 
as Internal Auditors of the Company, for conducting internal audit for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023.  
 

E. Reporting of Frauds by Auditors  
 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditor, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditor 
have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the 
Audit committee under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which needs to be mentioned 
in this Report. 
 
21. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 

going concern status and company’s operations in future: 
 

There was no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the 
financial year 2022-23, impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 



 
22. Risk Management 

 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated robust 
business Risk Management framework to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities. This 
framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on its business objectives and enhance 
its competitive advantage. It defines the risk management approach across the Company including the 
documentation and reporting. At present, the Company has not identified any element of risk which may 
threaten its existence. 
 
23. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies 
 
During the year under review, Your Company didn’t have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate 
Company as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, your Company is not required to provide any 
detail as per Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES 

During the year under review, Your Company didn’t have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate 
Company as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

24. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 
Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo, is as under: 

A. Conservation of Energy 

The Company uses energy for its office equipment such as computers, lighting and utilities at its work 
premises. As an ongoing process the following measures are undertaken to conserve energy: 

a) Implementation of viable energy saving proposals. 
b) Installation of automatic power controllers to save maximum charges and energy. 
c) Awareness and training sessions, at regular intervals, to concerned operational personnel on opportunities 
of energy conservation and their benefits. 

B. Technology Absorption 

The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to upgrade its infrastructure set up and innovative 
technical solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & employee efficiency. Next Generation Business 
Intelligence & analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that while data continues to grow, decision 
makers gets answers faster than ever for timely & critical level decision making. The Company has 
implemented best of the breed applications to manage and automate its business processes to achieve 
higher efficiency, data integrity and data security. It has helped it in implementing best business practices 
and shorter time to market new schemes, products and customer services. The Company has taken major 
initiatives for improved employee experience and efficient Human resource management, by implementing 



world class HRMS application and empowering them by providing mobile platform to manage their work 
while on the go. 
The Company’s investment in technology has improved customer services, reduced operational cost and 
development of new business opportunities. 
 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
 
There was no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year. 
 
25. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:  
 
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended on 31.03.2023, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
 
(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

 
(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care towards the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 
(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that such financial controls were adequate and 
were operating effectively; and 

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

26. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility”, the Company has undertaken projects in the 
area of Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills 
especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects 
as per its CSR Policy and the details given in Annual Report on CSR Activities attached as “Annexure - 3”, 
forming part of this Report. The project is in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the relevant rules. 

The CSR policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website 
http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/2017/04/csr.html.  
 
27. Corporate Governance Report 
 
The Company has been identified as a High Value Debt Listed Entity (‘HVDLE’), with effect from 7 September, 
2021 and as such is required to comply with the relevant provisions of the SEBI LODR, 2015 relating to 
corporate governance, on a ‘comply or explain’ basis, till 31 March, 2023. SEBI vide SEBI (LODR) (Second 
Amendment) Regulation, 2023 dated 14 June, 2023 has extended the timeline for ‘comply or explain’ period 
for the HVDLE till 31 March, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter. 



 
However, the Company has complied with most of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
the SEBI LODR, 2015 as on 31 March, 2023. A detailed report on Corporate Governance and copy of the 
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are provided as 
Annexure to this report.  
 
A certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance 
is also forming part of the Report on Corporate Governance. 
 
28. Compliances 
 
The Company is an Unlisted Company as its Shares are not listed on any stock exchange. However, the 
Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company on private placement basis are 
listed on Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 
 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its notification no. SEBI/LADNRO/ GN/2021/47, issued 
on September 7, 2021, amended the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and made Regulations 15 to 27 
applicable to the Debt Listed Companies having an outstanding value of listed Non-Convertible debt 
securities of ₹ 500 Crore and above i.e. High Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”), on comply or explain basis 
till March 31, 2024.  
 

Accordingly, your Company has been classified as a HVDLE and the aforementioned Regulations have 
become applicable to the Company.  

Further, till date your Company has complied with all the applicable Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 except Regulation 20(3A) and 21(3A) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which are applicable on comply or explain basis 
till March 31, 2024. 

29. Secretarial Standards 
 
Your Company complies with the Secretarial Standards on Meeting of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meeting (SS-2). 
 
30. Prevention, Prohibition and redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 
 
As required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013, a statement showing the number of complaints filed during the financial year and the number of 
complaints pending as on the end of the financial year is shown as under: 
 

Category No. of complaints pending at 
the beginning of  F.Y. 2022-

23 

No. of complaints filed 
during the F.Y. 2022-23 

No of complaints 
pending as at end of F.Y. 

2022-23 

Sexual Harassment Nil Nil Nil 

 
31. Vigil Mechanism 
 



In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a vigil 
mechanism to address the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company 
has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their 
concerns. The Company has also provided direct access to the Directors of the Company on reporting issues 
concerning the interests of Co-employees and the Company. No concern has been reported during the year.  

The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the Company at 
http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/ . 

 
32. Internal Financial Control and their Adequacy 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During 
the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was 
observed. 
 
33. Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures 
 
The Company is 100% owned project entity of Oriental InfraTrust [a trust incorporated in accordance with 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014]. All its 
operations are handled by the Project Manager and the Investment Manager appointed in accordance with 
the registered Trust deed of Oriental InfraTrust. Since the Company does not have any employee on its role, 
therefore the provisions prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.  
 
Further, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are employed in the Company 
on deputation basis and are drawing remuneration not exceeding the limits specified under above-
mentioned Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014. 
 
34. Details of application made or any proceeding pending  under the insolvency and bankruptcy code, 

2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year. 
 
There are no proceedings initiated/ pending against your company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 
 
35. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and 

the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions along with the reasons 
thereof. 

 
There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 
 
36. General 
 
Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were 
no transactions on these items during the period under review: 
 

i. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise pursuant to section 
43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013. 



 
ii. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme 

pursuant to section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014. 

 
iii. Issue of shares under Employee Stock Option Plan pursuant to section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
 

iv. Buy Back of shares. 
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ANNEXURE -1 

 
 

FORM NO.MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  
The Members,  
ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED  
Registered Office:  
Unit No 307A, 3rd floor,  
Worldmark 2 Asset Area No 8,  
Hospitality Dist., Delhi Aerocity,  
New Delhi – 110037  

 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED (hereinafter called 
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information, explanations and clarifications provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the 
representation made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, according to the provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;  
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  

(v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):  
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  



d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client with respect to issue of securities 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable 
to the Company during the Audit Period); and  
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021.  
i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018. 

 
The Company is in the business of construction of rigid and flexible pavements for roads, highways and 
airfield As confirmed and certified by the management, following laws are specifically applicable to the 
Company based on the Sector(s) / Business(es):  

 National Highway Authority of India Act, 1988 and rules/regulations/guidelines made thereunder  
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following:  
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEBI (LODR)].  
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except as mentioned below:  
 
1. The Company was not in compliance with the Regulation 50(1) of the SEBI (LODR), in respect of the shorter 

intimation was given regarding Board Meeting held on May 24, 2022 in which proposal for approval of 
financial results was considered.  

 
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Women Independent Directors during the period under 
review as stated above. The changes, in the composition of the Board that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except for meetings conducted at shorter notice complying 
with the necessary provisions) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
All decisions at Board and/or Committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes 
of the meetings of the Board of Directors or respective Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
 
We further report that based on the review of the compliance mechanism established by the Company and 
on the basis of the compliance certificate(s) issued by various departments and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors at their meetings, we are of the opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period there were no specific activities took place in the Company 
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines etc. 



For C Gaur &Associates  
Company Secretaries  

 
Chetan Gaur  

Date: 22/05/2023 (Proprietor)  
Place: Delhi Membership No: 37455  

COP No: 19223  
UDIN: A037455E000351395  

  



      This report is to be read with Annexure A, which forms an integral part of this report. 

 Annexure A  

The Members  
ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED  
 
Registered Office:  
 
Unit No 307A, 3rd floor,  
Worldmark 2 Asset Area No 8,  
Hospitality Dist., Delhi Aerocity,  
New Delhi – 110037  
 
Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and 
maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards 
CSAS-1 to CSAS-4(“CSAS”) prescribed by the ICSI. These standards require that the auditor complies with 
statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.  
 
Due to inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an 
avoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliance may not be detected, even though the 
audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read 
along with this letter.  
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company.  

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
random test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

For C Gaur &Associates  
Company Secretaries  

 
Chetan Gaur  

Date: 22/05/2023 (Proprietor)  
Place: Delhi Membership No: 37455  

COP No: 19223  
UDIN: A037455E000351395 



  ANNEXURE - 2 
 

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

  
We have conducted the review of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘the listed 
entity’), having its Registered Office at Unit No 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2 Asset Area No 8, Hospitality 
Dist., Delhi Aerocity, New Delhi – 110037. Secretarial Review was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and to provide our 
observations thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the listed entity’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the listed entity and also the information provided by the listed entity, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, we hereby report 
that the listed entity has, during the review period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter : 
 
We have examined:  
 
(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Oriental Nagpur Betul 

Highway Limited (“the listed entity”),  
(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,  
(c) website of the listed entity,  
(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,  
 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions 
of :  
 
(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines 

issued thereunder; and  
(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, 

circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);  
 
The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been 
examined, include:-  
 
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015;  
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(Not applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period) 
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; (Not applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period) 
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 

listed entity during the Review Period) 
(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not 

applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period) 
(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;  
(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  



(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018  

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; 
 
and based on the above examination, we hereby report that, during the Review Period:  
 
(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines 
issued thereunder, except in of respect matters specified below:-  
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of 
India 
Limit
ed 
(NSE) 

Fin
e 

For the 
meeting 
scheduled 
on May 24, 
2022, 
shorter 
notice/inti
mation was 
given to 
Stock 
Exchange 
on May 23, 
2022. 

Rs. 
5,000
/ 

Notice for 
non-
complianc
e was 
received 
by the 
Company 
on June 
29, 2022. 
The 
Company 
then filed 
waiver 
applicatio
n for the 
same, 
basis the 
meeting 
being only 
a 
reschedul
ed one of 
the 
original 
meeting.  
However 
the 
request 
was 
rejected 
by the 
relevant 
authority.  
The 
Company 
has thus 

Initially 
the BM 
was s 
cheduled 
on May 
14, 2022, 
for which 
sufficient 
notice 
was given 
to the 
STX. 
However 
the 
meeting 
was 
reschedul
ed to be 
held on 
May 24, 
2022, due 
to non-
availabilit
y of 
necessary 
document
s/request 
of director 
and the 
announce
ment of 
the said 
postpone
ment was 
given 
immediat

 



S
r
. 
N
o 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations

/ 
circulars/gui

delines 
including 
specific 
clause) 

Regula
tion/ 

Circula
r No. 

Deviatio
ns 

Actio
n 

Take
n 

by 

Typ
e of 
Acti
on 

Details of 
violation 

Fine 
Amo
unt 

Observat
ions/ 

remarks 
of the 

Practicin
g 

Compan
y 

Secretar
y, if any. 

Manage
ment 

Respons
e 

Rem
arks 

made the 
requisite 
payment 
of fine to 
the Stock 
exchange. 

ely on 
May 23, 
2022.  
 
 
 

2 The listed 
entity shall 
give prior 
intimation to 
the stock 
exchange(s) at 
least eleven 
working days 
before the 
date on and 
from which 
the interest on 
debentures 
and bonds, 
and 
redemption 
amount of 
redeemable 
shares or of 
debentures 
and bonds 
shall be 
payable. 

Reg. 
50(1) of 
SEBI 
LODR 
(Before 
substitu
tion on 
07.09.2
021) 

The 
mandator
y time 
gap of 
eleven 
working 
days was 
not 
obliged. 
For the 
payment 
to be 
made on 
due date 
i.e. March 
30, 2021, 
the 
intimatio
n was 
given on 
March 
16, 2021, 
which is 
less than 
11 
working 
days. 

Natio
nal 
Stock 
Excha
nge 
of 
India 
Limit
ed 
(NSE) 

Fin
e 

Delay   in   
furnishing 
prior   
intimation   
with 
respect to 
date of 
payment of 
interest - 
for March 
2021. 

Rs. 
55,00
0 

Notice for 
non-
complianc
e was 
received 
by the 
Company 
on 
Septembe
r 27, 2022.  
The 
Company 
has then 
filed 
waiver 
applicatio
n dated 
Sep 29, 
2022, on 
the basis 
of ill 
health of 
the then 
Company 
Secretary 
(he and 
his family 
was 
suffering 
from 
COVID) 
and the 
alleged 
matter is 
due to be 
considere
d by the 
relevant 
authority. 

With 
reference 
to the said 
non-
complianc
, pls take 
note that 
the then 
Company 
Secretary 
Sh. 
Rakesh 
Gusain 
and his 
family 
were 
suffering 
from 
COVID-19, 
and thus 
could not 
submit 
the 
disclosure 
under 
required 
regulation 
within 
time.  

 



S
r
. 
N
o 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations

/ 
circulars/gui

delines 
including 
specific 
clause) 

Regula
tion/ 

Circula
r No. 

Deviatio
ns 

Actio
n 

Take
n 

by 

Typ
e of 
Acti
on 

Details of 
violation 

Fine 
Amo
unt 

Observat
ions/ 

remarks 
of the 

Practicin
g 

Compan
y 

Secretar
y, if any. 

Manage
ment 

Respons
e 

Rem
arks 

3 The listed 
entity shall 
give notice in 
advance of at 
least seven 
working days 
(excluding the 
date of 
intimation and 
the record 
date) to the 
recognised 
stock 
exchange(s) of 
the record 
date 

Reg. 
60(2) of 
SEBI 
LODR 

The 7 
working 
days’ 
time gap 
been 
inadverte
ntly 
interpret
ed by the 
Company 
as 7 days. 

Natio
nal 
Stock 
Excha
nge 
of 
India 
Limit
ed 
(NSE) 

Fin
e 

Delay  in  
submission  
of the  
notice  of 
record date 
- for March 
2021, Sep 
2021 and 
March 22 

Rs. 
1,00,
000 
(Mar 
21) + 
60,00
0 
(Sep 
21) + 
30,00
0 
(Mar 
22) 

The 
Company 
has filed 
intimation 
pursuant 
to 
Regulatio
n 60(2) for 
March 
2022 on 
the 
respective 
due date. 
For the 
quarter 
ended 
Septembe
r 2021, a 
clarificatio
n dated 
Septembe
r 8, 2021, 
explaining 
the delay 
was 
provided 
by the 
Company 
to the 
Stock 
exchange. 
 
However, 
for the 
period 
ending 
March 
2021, the 
Company 
has filed 
waiver 
applicatio
n on the 
grounds 
of ill 

With 
reference 
to the said 
non-
complianc
e, pls take 
note that 
the then 
Company 
Secretary 
Sh. 
Rakesh 
Gusain 
and his 
family 
were 
suffering 
from 
COVID-19, 
and thus 
could not 
submit 
the 
disclosure 
under 
required 
regulation 
within 
time. 

 



S
r
. 
N
o 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations

/ 
circulars/gui

delines 
including 
specific 
clause) 

Regula
tion/ 

Circula
r No. 

Deviatio
ns 

Actio
n 

Take
n 

by 

Typ
e of 
Acti
on 

Details of 
violation 

Fine 
Amo
unt 

Observat
ions/ 

remarks 
of the 

Practicin
g 

Compan
y 

Secretar
y, if any. 

Manage
ment 

Respons
e 

Rem
arks 

health of 
the then 
Company 
Secretary, 
and the 
alleged 
matter is 
due to be 
considere
d. 

 
(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous 
reports; 
 

Sl. 
N
o. 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circulars/guid
elines 
including 
specific 
clause) 

Regulati
on/ 
Circular 
No. 

Deviati
ons 

Acti
on 
Tak
en 
by 

Typ
e of 
Acti
on 

Detail
s of 
Violati
on 

Fine 
Amo
unt 

Observati
ons/ 
Remarks 
of the 
Practicing 
Company 
Secretary 

Manage
ment 
Response 

Rema
rks 

Not Applicable 
 
II. Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditors from listed entities and their material subsidiaries 
as 
    per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th October, 2019: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Compliance 
Status 

(Yes/No/ NA) 

Observations/ 
Remarks by 

PCS* 
1 Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/re-appointing an auditor 
 i. If the auditor has resigned within 45 days 

from the end of a quarter of a financial year, 
the auditor before such resignation, has 
issued the limited review/ audit report for 
such quarter; or 
 
ii. If the auditor has resigned after 45 days 
from the end of a quarter of a financial year, 
the auditor before such resignation, has 
issued the limited review/ audit report for 

NA There has been no 
resignation of statutory 
auditors in the FY 2022-
23. 



such quarter as well as the next quarter; or 
 
iii. If the auditor has signed the limited 
review/ audit report for the first three 
quarters of a financial year, the auditor 
before such resignation, has issued the 
limited review/ audit report for the last 
quarter of such financial year as well as the 
audit report for such financial year 

2 Other conditions relating to resignation of statutory auditor 
 i. Reporting of concerns by Auditor with 

respect to the listed entity/its material 
subsidiary to the Audit Committee: 
 
a. In case of any concern with the 
management of the listed entity/material 
subsidiary such as non-availability of 
information / non-cooperation by the 
management which has hampered the audit 
process, the auditor has approached the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the 
listed entity and the Audit Committee shall 
receive such concern directly and 
immediately without specifically waiting for 
the quarterly Audit Committee meetings. 
 
b. In case the auditor proposes to resign, all 
concerns with respect to the proposed 
resignation, along with relevant documents 
has been brought to the notice of the Audit 
Committee. In cases where the proposed 
resignation is due to non-receipt of 
information / explanation from the 
company, the auditor has informed the Audit 
Committee the details of information/ 
explanation sought and not provided by the 
management, as applicable. 
 
c. The Audit Committee / Board of Directors, 
as the case may be, deliberated on the 
matter on receipt of such information from 
the auditor relating to the proposal to resign 
as mentioned above and communicate its 
views to the management and the auditor. 
 
ii. Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of 
information: 
 The auditor has provided an appropriate 
disclaimer in its audit report, which is in 
accordance with the Standards of Auditing as 
specified by ICAI / NFRA, in case where the 

NA There has been no 
resignation of statutory 
auditors in the FY 2022-
23. 



listed entity/ its material subsidiary has not 
provided information as required by the 
auditor. 

3. The listed entity / its material subsidiary has 
obtained information from the Auditor upon 
resignation, in the format as specified in 
Annexure- A in SEBI Circular CIR/ 
CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th October, 
2019. 

NA There has been no 
resignation of statutory 
auditors in the FY 2022-
23. 

 
III. We hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity is appended 
as below: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Compliance status 
(Yes/No/NA) 

Observations 
/Remarks by 

PCS* 
1. Secretarial Standard: 

 
The compliances of listed entities are in 
accordance with the Auditing Standards issued by 
ICSI, namely CSAS-1 to CSAS-3 

Yes  

2. Adoption and timely updation of the Policies: 
 
•All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations are 
adopted with the approval of board of directors of 
the listed entities 
• All the policies are in conformity with SEBI 
Regulations and has been reviewed & timely 
updated as per the regulations/circulars/ 
guidelines issued by SEBI 

Yes  

3. Maintenance and disclosures on Website: 
 
• The Listed entity is maintaining a functional 
website 
• Timely dissemination of the documents/ 
information under a separate section on the 
website 
• Web-links provided in annual corporate 
governance reports under Regulation 27(2) are 
accurate and specific which redirects to the 
relevant document(s)/ section of the website 

Yes, the Company is 
maintaining a 
functional website and 
timely dissemination of 
information/documents 
are done on the 
website. 
However, please take 
note that being a High 
Value Debt Listed entity 
our Annual Corporate 
Governance Report 
consists details only as 
per Operational 
Circular issued by 
circular dated July 29, 
2022. 

 

4. Disqualification of Director: 
 
None of the Director of the Company are 
disqualified under Section 164 of Companies Act, 

Yes  



2013 
5. To examine details related to Subsidiaries of listed 

entities: 
 
(a) Identification of material subsidiary companies 
(b) Requirements with respect to disclosure of 
material as well as other subsidiaries 

NA The company has 
no subsidiary. 

6. Preservation of Documents: 
 
The listed entity is preserving and maintaining 
records as prescribed under SEBI Regulations and 
disposal of records as per Policy of Preservation of 
Documents and Archival policy prescribed under 
SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 

Yes  

7. Performance Evaluation: 
 
The listed entity has conducted performance 
evaluation of the Board, Independent Directors 
and the Committees at the start of every financial 
year as prescribed in SEBI Regulations 

Yes  

8. Related Party Transactions: 
 
(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of 
Audit Committee for all Related party transactions 
 (b) In case no prior approval obtained, the listed 
entity shall provide detailed reasons along with 
confirmation whether the transactions were 
subsequently approved/ ratified/rejected by the 
Audit committee 

Yes  
However, no new 

Related party 
transactions has been 

entered into by the 
Company during the FY 

under review. 

 

9. Disclosure of events or information: 
 
The listed entity has provided all the required 
disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with 
Schedule III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 within 
the time limits prescribed thereunder. 

Regulation 30 is not 
applicable to the 
Company. However the 
Company has disclosed 
all the Price Sensitive 
Information as per 
Regulation 51 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 
2015. 

 

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading: 
 
The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 
3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 

As per the FAQs issued 
by the SEBI on March 
31, 2023 on SEBI (PIT) 
Regulations, 2015, the 
Company is in the 
process of complying 
with the respective 
provisions by 
developing the requisite 
Structured Digital 
Database (SDD) 

The company was 
maintaining the 
data in excel sheet 
of designated 
persons and 
connected persons 
and in the process 
of developing the 
SDD at the earliest  

11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any: 
 

Yes  



No Actions taken against the listed entity/ its 
promoters/directors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI 
or by Stock Exchanges (including under the 
Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI 
through various circulars) under SEBI Regulations 
and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder 

12. Additional Non-compliances, if any: 
 
No any additional non-compliance observed for all 
SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 

Yes None  

 
Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review: 
 
1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished, 
are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 
 
2. Our responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. This 
is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 
 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Accounts of 
the listed entity. 
 
4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the listed entity. 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 22nd May 2023                               

For C Gaur & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Chetan Gaur 
Practicing Company Secretary 

ACS No.: 37455 
                                                                                              CP No.: 19223
                         UDIN: A037455E000351406 

                           PR No. 3160/2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  



Annexure - 3 

Format for the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report for Financial Year 
Commencing on or After 1st Day of April, 2020 

  
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:  
 
CSR policy contributes by undertaking livelihood support plan for promoting education, including special 
education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among children, women, elderly and the 
differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects, which shall also eventually help in eradicating the 
poverty. 
  
2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation / 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 

during the year 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year 

1 Mr. Deepak Kukreja Chairperson 2 2 

2 Ms. Monika Kohli Member 2 2 

3 Mr. Nikhil Dhingra* Member 1 1 

4 Mr. Ranveer Sharma Member 2 2 

5. Mr. Abhishek Sehgal* Member NA NA 
*Mr. Nikhil Dhingra ceased to be the member of the committee wef January 30, 2023 and Mr. Abhishek 
Sehgal was induced as the member of the committee wef February 13, 2023. 

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are 
disclosed on the website of the company: www.nagpurbetulhighway.in 

4.  Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried 
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 2,70,92,18,668/- 
     (b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 5,41,84,373/- 

  (c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: 
Not Applicable 

  (d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable 
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 5,41,84,373/- 
 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects for the Financial Year (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing 
Project): NIL 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL  
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL  
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: 
(e) CSR Amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 
 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year. (in 
Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5) 
 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of transfer 



NIL 5,41,84,373 28.04.2023 - - - 

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL 

Sl. 
No. 

Particular Amount (in 
Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 5,41,84,373 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any 

NIL 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL 

 
7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

 Sl. No. Preceding 
Financial Year. 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in Rs.) 

Amount spent 
in the 

reporting 
Financial Year 

(in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any 
fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per section 
135(6), if any. 

Amount remaining to 
be spent in succeeding 
financial years. (in Rs.) 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount 
(in Rs) 

Date of 
transfer. 

1. 2021-22 5,47,86,344 Nil    5,47,86,345 

2. 2020-21 5,09,46,375 3,31,34,182 - - - 1,00,12,193  
(Rs. 78,00,000 were 

spent in the FY 2021-
22) 

3. 
       

 
Total 10,57,32,719 3,31,34,182 - - - 6,47,98,537 

 
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year: No 
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable 
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 
 
(a) Short particulars of the property or asset(s) [including complete address and location of the property] 
(b) Pincode of the property or asset(s) 
(c) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): 
(d) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 
(e) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 

registered, their address etc. 
 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5):   



"The Board considered requirements of additional funds in the ongoing project "LSP for ECKHPL". Due to the 
initial delay, the program implementation was anticipated to extend upto March 2025 and will require 
additional funds to implement additional range of livelihood support activities. 

 

Sd/- 
Deepak Kukreja 

      Chairperson of CSR committee 
DIN: 00175365 

Add: D-933-934, Pocket-3, D.D.A 
Flats, Bindapur, Dwarka 

New Delhi - 110059 

   Sd/- 
Ranveer Sharma 

Member of CSR committee 
DIN: 02483364 

Add: 1003B, Sterling Sea face, 
Near Poonam chambers, Annie 
Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 

400018 
 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 22/05/2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
                       
1. THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
 
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at assisting the management of the Company 
in the efficient conduct of its business and meeting its obligations to stakeholders and is guided by a strong 
emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. The governance practices and processes ensure that 
the interest of all stakeholders are taken into account in a transparent manner and are firmly embedded into 
the culture of the organisation. 
 
The Company has fair, transparent and ethical governance practices, essential for augmenting long-term 
shareholder value and retaining investor trust. This has been possible through continued efforts and 
commitment to the highest standards of corporate conduct. 
 
The Company has a dynamic, experienced and well-informed Board. The Board along with its Committees, 
with the Corporate Governance mechanism in place, undertakes its fiduciary duties towards all its 
stakeholders. The Company keeps its governance practices under continuous review and benchmark itself 
to best practices. 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
(A) Composition and size of the Board 

 
All the Directors of the Company are well qualified persons of proven competence and possess the highest 
level of personal and professional ethics, integrity and values. The Directors of the Company exercise their 
objective judgment independently. 

 
Presently, as on the date of this report, the Board consists of five Directors, three of whom, Mr. Deepak 
Kukreja, Ms. Monika Kohli and Ms. Smita Rastogi are Non-Executive Independent Directors. Mr. Abhishek 
Sehgal is the Chairman and Whole time Director of the Company.  
 
The Chairman, Abhishek Sehgal, being an Executive Director, the number of Independent Non-Executive 
Directors on the Board is one half of the total Board strength.  
 
No Director is related to any other Director on the Board. The Board comprises of the Directors that bring a 
wide range of skills, expertise and experience which enhance overall Board effectiveness. 
 
The Board has identified skills and domain expertize required by the Directors of the Company which includes 
Business Strategy, Taxation, Regulatory Compliances, Project management & supervision, Risk Management, 
Corporate Governance, Corporate Social Responsibility, Stakeholder Management, Operations and Process 
Optimization, Business Management, Finance Management, Business Development, Human Resources 
Management, Resource Mobilization, Collections, Economics, Law, etc. The Directors of the Company have 
mapped their skills based on the Board skill matrix. Details of Directors, directorship in Listed Companies, 
number of directorships held by them in other Companies and also the number of their Memberships and 
Chairmanships on various Board Committees, including skill sets/ expertise/competencies/practical 
knowledge, as on March 31, 2023, are as under: 
 

Sl. 
N
o 

Name of 
the 

Director 

Nature of 
Office 

Special 
Knowledge/ 

Practical 
Experience/ 

Skills / 

Names of 
the other 

Listed 
entities 

where the 

Category of 
directorshi

p 
in other 

listed 

No. of Directorships No. of 
Memberships/ 

Chairmanships in 
Board Committees 

of 



Expertise 
/Competenci

es 

person is a 
director 

entities 
where the 
person is a 

director 

various companies 
(including this 
Company)** 

in other 
Listed 

Companie
s 

(excluding 
Debt 
listed 

Company) 

In other 
Companie

s* 

Member
s 

hips 

Chairm
a 

nships 

1 Mr. 
Abhishek 
Sehgal 
(DIN: 
09771954) 

Chairman 
and 

Whole-
time 

Director 

Business 
Strategy, 
Taxation, 
Business 

Management
, Finance 

Management
, Business 

Development 
 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

2 Mr. 
Ranveer 
Sharma 
(DIN: 
02483364) 

Non- 
Executive 
Director 

Business 
Management

, Finance 
Management

, Business 
Development

, Human 
Resources 

Management
, Resource 

Mobilization 

NIL NIL NIL 1 (One) 1 (One) NIL 

3 Mr. Deepak 
Kukreja 
(DIN: 
00175365) 

Non- 
Executive

/ 
Independ

ent 
Director 

Regulatory 
Compliances, 

Risk 
Management
, Corporate 

Governance, 
Corporate 

Social 
Responsibility
, Stakeholder 
Management

, Law 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

4 Ms. Monika 
Kohli 
(DIN: 
06990318) 

Non- 
Executive

/ 
Independ

ent 
Director 

Regulatory 
Compliances, 

Risk 
Management
, Corporate 

Governance, 
Corporate 

Social 
Responsibility
, Stakeholder 
Management

,Law 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

5 Ms. Smita 
Rastogi 
(DIN: 
07813787) 

Non- 
Executive

/ 
Independ

ent 
Director 

Regulatory 
Compliances, 

Risk 
Management
, Corporate 

Governance, 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 



Corporate 
Social 

Responsibility
, Stakeholder 
Management 

Note 1: During the FY 2022-23, Mr. Abhishek Sehgal (DIN: 09771954) was appointed as Whole-time director of the Company for 
the period of 5 (Five) years with effect from February 13, 2023 and the same was approved by the members of the Company at the 
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on May 10, 2023. 
 
Note 2: During the FY 2022-23, Mr. Nikhil Dhingra (DIN: 07835556) resigned as the Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the 
Company with effect from January 30, 2023. 
 
*Excludes directorship(s) held in foreign companies & private limited companies and Companies under section 8 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Partnership Firms, LLP, HUF, Sole Proprietorships and Association of Individuals (Trust, Society etc.). 
**Only memberships of the Audit Committee / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in various public limited companies and 
chairmanship of the Audit Committee / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in various equity listed limited companies, including 
this listed company are considered, as per Regulation 26 of the SEBI LODR. The Company being ‘High Value Debt Listed Entity’, the 
membership and chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee in the Company have not been 
considered, in terms of Regulation 26(1) of Listing Regulations. 
 
The Board do hereby confirms that all the present Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the 
conditions specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the management of the Company.  
 
The Board had accepted all recommendations of Committees of the Board which are mandatorily required, 
during the financial year 2022-23. 
 
As on March 31, 2023, none of the Non-Executive Directors held any Equity Share and/or Convertible 
Security of the Company. 
 
The Company has familiarization programme for Independent Directors with regard to their roles, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business model 
of the Company etc. The familiarization programme along with details of the same imparted to the 
Independent Directors during the year are available on the website of the Company 
http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/p/independent-directors-familiarisation.html  
 
(B) Number and Dates of Board Meetings held, attendance of Directors thereat and at the last AGM held 

 
The Board Meetings of the Company are held in a highly professional manner, after giving proper notice, 
Board papers, agenda and other explanatory notes / relevant information to each of the Directors of the 
Company, well in advance. At least one meeting is held in every quarter, to review the quarterly performance 
and the financial results of the Company. 
 
At the Board Meetings, the Executive Directors and Senior Management make presentations on various 
matters including the financial results, operations related issues, risk management, the economic and 
regulatory environment, compliance, investors’ perceptions etc. 
 
During the year under review, 4 (Four) Board Meetings were held and the gap between two meetings did 
not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were held on 24/05/2022, 08/08/2022, 
12/11/2022 & 13/02/2023. The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. During FY2022-23, 1 (one) 
meeting of the Independent Directors was held on February 13, 2023 where in all the Independent Directors 
attended the meeting. The Independent Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors, Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views 
of Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. 
 



The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 30, 2022. 
 
Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the FY 2022-23 and at the last Annual General 
Meeting are as under: 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Director No. of Board meetings 
Attended 

Attendance at the last 
AGM 

1 Mr. Abhishek Sehgal* 1 NA 
2 Mr. Ranveer Sharma 4 No 
3 Mr. Deepak Kukreja 3 Yes 
4 Mr. Monika Kohli 4 Yes 
5 Ms. Smita Rastogi 3 No 
6 Mr. Nikhil Dhingra* 3 Yes 

*During the FY 2022-23, Mr. Nikhil Dhingra (DIN: 07835556) resigned as the Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Company 
with effect from January 30, 2023 and Mr. Abhishek Sehgal (DIN: 09771954) was appointed as Whole-time director of the Company 
for a period of 5 years with effect from February 13, 2023 and the same was approved by the members of the Company at the 
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on May 10, 2023. 
 
3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
The Board has constituted various Committees to take informed decisions in the best interest of the 
Company. These Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms of reference. Further, terms of 
reference were revised to align with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing regulations. The 
number of Directorships held by all Directors as well as their Membership / Chairmanship in Committees is 
within the prescribed limits under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 
 
The role and the composition of these Committees including number of meetings held during the financial 
year and participation of the members at the meetings of the committees, during the year are as under: 
 
(A) Audit Committee 
 

Composition 
 
The Audit Committee comprises of four members, namely, Mr. Deepak Kukreja, Independent Director as 
the Chairman, Ms. Monika Kohli and Ms. Smita Rastogi, Independent Directors and Mr. Ranveer Sharma, 
Non-Executive Director, as other three members. 
 
Terms of reference of the Audit Committee 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, include: 
 
(1) oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  
(2) recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed 
entity;  
(3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;  
(4) reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  
(a) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board’s 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;  
(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;  
(c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;  



(d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;  
(e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;  
(f) disclosure of any related party transactions;  
(g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;  
(5) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board 
for approval;  
(6) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a 396[public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or 
qualified institutions placement], and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps 
in this matter;  
(7) reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process;  
(8) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;  
(9) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
(10) valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;  
(11) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;  
(12) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;  
(13) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;  
(14) discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  
(15) reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there 
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board;  
(16) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;  
(17) to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  
(18) to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;  
(19) approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate;  
(20) reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 
including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this 
provision. 
(21) consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, 
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders. 
 
Meetings and Attendance during the year 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met four times. The dates of the meetings 
being May 24, 2022, August 08, 2022, November 12, 2022 & February 13, 2023. 
 
The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under: 
 

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings 
Held Attended 



Mr. Deepak Kukreja Chairperson 4 3 
Ms. Monika Kohli Member 4 4 
Mr. Ranveer Sharma Member 4 4 
Ms. Smita Rastogi* Member 4 3 

 
(B) Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
 
Composition 
 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of four members, namely, Ms. Monika Kohli, 
Independent Director as the Chairperson, Mr. Deepak Kukreja and Ms. Smita Rastogi, Independent Directors 
and Mr. Ranveer Sharma, Non-Executive Director, as other three members. 
 
Terms of reference 
 
The terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, include: 
 
(a) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance; 

(b)  Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees; 

(c)   Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
(d)   Devising a policy on Board diversity; 
(e)  Ensuring that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and Non-Executive     

Directors; 
(f)  All information about the Directors/ Managing Directors / Whole time Directors / Key Managerial 

Personnel i.e., background details, past remuneration, recognition or awards, job profile shall be 
considered and disclosed to shareholders, where required;  

(g)   The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure the compliance of provisions under Schedule V 
of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointing and fixing remuneration of Managing Directors/ Whole-time 
Directors; 

(h) While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account financial position of the 
Company, trend in the industry, qualification, experience and past performance of the appointee; and 

(i)   The Committee shall be in a position to bring about objectivity in determining the remuneration package 
while striking the balance between the interest of the Company and the shareholders. 

 
Meetings and Attendance during the year 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met two times. The dates of the meetings 
being November 12, 2022 and February 13, 2023. 
 
The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under: 

 
Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 
Ms. Monika Kohli  Chairperson 2 2 
Mr. Deepak Kukreja Member 2 2 
Mr. Ranveer Sharma Member 2 2 
Ms. Smita Rastogi* Member NA NA 

* Ms. Smita Rastogi (DIN: 07813787) was induced as the member of the committee wef February 13, 2023. 



 
Policy for selection and appointment of Directors 
 
NRC policy indicating the guiding factors in relation to appointment and removal of Director, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management and remuneration to be paid, etc, recommended by the NRC Committee 
and approved by the Board, is annexed as Annexure A. 
 
Evaluation of the Board and Directors 
 
In order to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Governance, the Companies Act, 2013 requires a statement 
indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own 
performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors. 
 
The mechanism to evaluate the performance, as per the statutory requirement, was considered and adopted 
by the Board, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.  
 
In order to do the evaluation, structured evaluation criteria were considered by the Board for evaluating 
itself/ Committees and individual Directors, which were broadly based on certain specific parameters. The 
Directors expressed overall satisfaction on the evaluation process. 
 
(C) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 
Composition 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Deepak Kukreja, 
Independent Director as the Chairperson, Mr. Abhishek Sehgal and Mr. Ranveer Sharma, Non-Executive 
Director, as other two members. 
 
Terms of reference 
 
The terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee, inter-alia, include: 
a) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to   

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of 
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

b)  Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
c)  Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services 

being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
d) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices 
by the shareholders of the company. 

 
Meetings and Attendance during the year 
 
The Company being a High Value Debt listed entity has to comply with the Corporate Governance 
requirements on “comply or explain” basis till March 31, 2024. The entity will hold the necessary meeting(s) 
in compliance with the statutory provisions from 2023 onwards. 
 
Name and designation of the Compliance officer: 
Ms. Srishti Garg, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer pursuant to Regulation 6(1) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 
 



Details of queries / complaints received and resolved pertaining to Equity Shares of the Company during 
the year 2022-23: 
 
During FY 2022-23, no complaints were received from the Equity Shareholders of the Company. 
 
Details of queries / complaints received and resolved pertaining to Non-Convertible Debentures of the 
Company during the year 2022-23: 
 
During FY 2022-23, no complaints were received from the Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company. 
 
(D) Risk Management Committee 
 
Composition 
 
The Risk Management Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Abhishek Sehgal, Whole-time 
Director as the Chairperson, Mr. Monika Kohli, Independent Director and Mr. Ranveer Sharma, Non-
Executive Director, as other two members. 
 
Terms of reference 
 
The terms of reference of Risk Management Committee, inter-alia, include: 
 
(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:  
(a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in 
particular including business and operations, financial, regulatory compliance, policy, cyber security or any 
other risk as may be determined by the Committee.  
(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.  
(c) Business continuity plan. 
 
(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate 
risks associated with the business of the Company. 
 
(3)To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the 

adequacy of risk management systems. 
 
Meetings and Attendance during the year 
The Company being a High Value Debt listed entity has to comply with the Corporate Governance 
requirements on “comply or explain” basis till March 31, 2024. The entity will hold the necessary meeting(s) 
in compliance with the statutory provisions from 2023 onwards. 
 
(E) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
 
Composition 
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of four members, namely, Mr. Deepak Kukreja as 
the Chairperson, Mr. Monika Kohli, Independent Director, Mr. Ranveer Sharma, Non-Executive Director and 
Mr. Abhishek Sehgal, Whole time director, as other two members. 
 
Terms of reference 
 
The terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, inter-alia, include: 



 
1. Formulate and update our CSR Policy, which will be approved by the Board 
2. Suggest areas of intervention to the Board 
3. Approve projects that are in line with the CSR policy 
4. Put monitoring mechanisms in place to track the progress of each project 
5. Recommend the CSR expenditure to the Board who will approve it 
6. To oversee the implementation of our CSR Policy, in compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Meetings and Attendance during the year 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met two times. The dates of the meetings 
being August 8, 2022 and February 13, 2023. 
 
The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under: 

 
Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 
Mr. Deepak Kukreja Chairperson 2 2 
Mr. Ranveer Sharma Member 2 2 
Ms. Monika Kohli Member 2 2 
Mr. Abhishek Sehgal* Member NA NA 

** Mr. Abhishek Sehgal (DIN: 09771954) was induced as the member of the committee wef February 13, 2023. 

 
4. Director’s Remuneration: 
 
(a) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors): 
 
None of the NEDs and IDs had any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company during the year 
under review. The Company had paid Sitting fees to the Independent Directors (“IDs”) of the Company, for 
the FY 2022-23, as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  
 
Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors), is disclosed in the 
NRC policy of the Company which is forming part of this Annual report. 
 
(b) Remuneration of Executive Directors 
 
Mr. Abhishek Sehgal was appointed by the shareholders as Whole-time director of the Company for tenure 
of 5 years w.e.f. February 13, 2023, liable to retire by rotation. The notice period applicable to him is as per 
the Company’s policies. No severance fee is payable by the Company on his termination. 
 
During the FY 2022-23, Mr. Sehgal did not draw any remuneration in the form of salary, benefits, bonuses, 
stock options or in any other form, from the Company as a director of the Company. 
 
5. General Body Meetings 
 
(A) Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and number of special resolutions 

passed thereat: 
 

Year Annual 
General 
Meeting 

Date of the AGM Location Time Number of 
special 
resolutions 
passed 



2019-20 10th AGM 23rd October 2020 Conference Room, OSE 
Commercial Block, Hotel Aloft, 
Assets 5B, Aerocity, 
Hospitality District, IGI 
Airport, New Delhi – 110 037 

11:00 AM NIL 

2020-21 11th AGM 30th September 2021 Conference Room, OSE 
Commercial Block, Hotel Aloft, 
Assets 5B, Aerocity, 
Hospitality District, IGI 
Airport, New Delhi – 110 037 

01:00 PM NIL 

2021-22 12th AGM 30th September 2022 Conference Room, OSE 
Commercial Block, Hotel Aloft, 
Assets 5B, Aerocity, 
Hospitality District, IGI 
Airport, New Delhi – 110 037 

11:00 AM NIL 

 
(B) Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”): 
 
During FY 2022-23, no Extra-Ordinary General meeting of the Company was held. 
 
(C) Postal Ballot during the FY 2022-23: 
 
During the year 2022-23, no resolution was passed by the Company through Postal Ballot. No Special 
Resolution requiring Postal Ballot is being proposed on or before the ensuing AGM of the Company. 
 
6. Means of Communication 
 
A separate dedicated section ‘Investors’ is maintained on the website of the Company for ease of the 
shareholders. The information/documents required to be disseminated by the Company pursuant to the Act 
and SEBI Listing Regulations are uploaded on the website of the Company. 
 
The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are submitted to the National Stock Exchanges of India 
Limited and published in “the Pioneer” (New Delhi edition). 
 
The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are displayed on 
the Company’s website at http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/ and on National Stock Exchanges of India 
Limited’s website at www.nseindia.com  
 
7. General Shareholders Information 
 
(A) Company Registration Details 
The Company is registered in the State of Delhi, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the 
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is U45400DL2010PLC203649. 
 
(B) Date, Time and Venue of AGM 
 
The 13th AGM of the Company would be held on the day, date and time as mentioned in the Notice convening 
the said AGM. 
 
(C) Financial year 
 



The financial year of the Company is a period of twelve months beginning on April 01, every calendar year 
and ending on March 31 the following calendar year. 
 
(D) Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable 
 
(E) Listing on Stock Exchanges 
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are not listed. Only Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 
(NCDs), issued through private placement basis are listed on National Stock Exchange of India. 
 
The listing fees for the financial year 2022-2023 & 2023-24, have been duly paid to NSE. 
 
F) Stock Code: 
 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited: ORG684 
 
(G) Stock Market Price at National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE): Not 
Applicable 
 
(H) Performance of the Company’s share in comparison to broad – based indices: Not Applicable 
 
(I) Explanation in regard to suspension of trading of securities: Not Applicable 
 
(J) Share Transfer System: 
 
In terms of Regulation 61 read with 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, 
securities can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of 
request received for transmission or transposition of securities. 100 % equity shares of the Company are in 
dematerialized form, hence, transfers of equity shares in electronic form are effected through the 
depositories with no involvement of the Company. 
 
(K) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2023 – Not Applicable as the Company is wholly owned 
subsidiary of Oriental InfraTrust. 
 
(L) Registrar and Transfer Agents 
 
Mas Services Limited 
T-34, IInd Floor 
Okhla Industrial Area 
Phase-II, New Delhi 110020 
Phone number: +91 11 2638 7281 
E-mail: info@masserv.com 
Website: https://www.masserv.com/ 
 
(M) Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2023 
 
Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited holds 1,81,34,500 Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each along with its 7 
nominees. 
 
(N) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity 
 



100% Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023. Under the Depository 
System, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s equity shares is 
INE105N01012. 
 
(O) Outstanding global depository receipts or American Depository Receipts or warrants or any 
convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: Not Applicable 
 
(P) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Not Applicable 
 
(Q) Plant Locations: Not Applicable 
 
(R) Address for Correspondence 
 
Unit No. 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2, Asset Area No. 8, 
Hospitality District, Delhi Aerocity, near IGI Airport, 
New Delhi - 110037 
Email: info@orientalindia.com, 
Tel: 91-11-44454600 
Website: http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/ 
 
(S) Debenture Trustees 
 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Contact Person: Ms. Rakshita 
Address: The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Dadar West, Mumbai – 400 028 (Maharashtra) 
Tel: (022) 62300431 
Website: http://www.debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com/ 
 
(T) Profiles of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment: Not Applicable 
 
(U) Credit Ratings and Change/ Revisions in Credit Ratings for Debt Instruments: 
 
During the year under review, CRISIL Ratings Limited (CRISIL) and CARE Ratings Limited (CARE) has reaffirmed 
its rating on Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) as AAA/Stable. Securities with this rating are considered to 
have the highest degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such securities carry 
lowest credit risk. 
 
(V) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 
placement: 
 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company did not allot any shares through preferential allotment or 
qualified institutional placement. 
 
(W) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors 
 
Total fees for all services paid by the Company, to the Statutory Auditor and all entities in the network 
firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part is given below:- 
  

Particulars FY 2022-23 
Auditor’s Fee 2,95,000 

Others  9,19,107 



Total 12,14,107 
#including GST 
 
8. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 
 
A certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary certifying the Company’s compliance with the provisions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, is annexed as Annexure C and forms a part of this Report. 
 
Further, the Company has also obtained certificate from M/s C Gaur Associates, Practising Company 
Secretaries that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such statutory authority. The same is annexed as Annexure D and forms a part of this Report. 
 
9. DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 

Number of complaints filed 
during the financial year. 

Number of complaints disposed 
of during the financial year. 

Number of complaints pending 
as on end of the financial year. 

Nil NA NA 
 
10. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
(A) Related Party Transactions 
 
There were no material related party transactions during the year that have a conflict with the interest of 
the Company. 
 
Further, the Company also has a policy on dealing with related party transactions which is disclosed on its 
website at http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/p/related-party-transaction-policy.html  
 
(B) Strictures and penalties during the last three years 
 
During the financial year 2022-23, the Company received notice from NSE for non-compliance with 
Regulation 50(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations – prior intimation to the stock exchange of at least two working 
days in advance about the Board meeting in which any of the following proposals is to be considered: 
financial results viz. quarterly or annual, as the case may be and imposed penalty of Rs. 5000/-. The company 
paid the said penalty to NSE. 
 
Further, the Company has also received notices as per Regulation 50(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations (Before 
substitution on 07.09.2021) - prior intimation to the stock exchange(s) at least eleven working days before 
the date on and from which the interest on debentures and bonds, and redemption amount of redeemable 
shares or of debentures and bonds shall be payable and Regulation 60(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations - Notice 
in advance of at least seven working days (excluding the date of intimation and the record date) to the 
recognised stock exchange(s) of the record date. The Company has filed waiver applications for both the 
notices and the alleged matters are due to be considered. 
 
In addition to the above, during the FY 2019-20, the Company, and its ex-directors/officers had received 
Show Cause Notices from the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
New Delhi (“ROC”), for non-compliance done under the provisions of Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 



2014 by not attaching/annexing the Secretarial Audit Report (“SAR”) dated 30.06.2017 in form no. MR-3 in 
e-Form AOC-4 XBRL for the financial year 2016-17 which is punishable under section 204 (4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Such non-compliance is compoundable in nature.  
 
The Company & its Ex-directors/Company Secretary, in order to buy peace, qua such non-compliance, had 
filed necessary Compounding Application under section 441 of the Act with ROC and the same was 
compounded by the Regional Director, Northern Region. 
 
(C) Vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy 
 
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established necessary Vigil Mechanism for Directors and 
employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. 
 
The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the Company: 
(http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/2017/04/policies.html)  
 
(D) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements 
pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
 
The Company has endeavoured to comply with all the mandatory requirements pursuant to SEBI Listing 
Regulations, in letter as well as in spirit except holding the requisite meetings of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee and Risk Management Committee in the relevant Financial Year. The details of these compliances 
have been given in the relevant sections of this Report. 
 
(E) Material Subsidiaries 
 
Not applicable as the Company does not have any material subsidiaries. 
 
(F) Commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable 
 
(G) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement 
as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Not Applicable 
 
(H) Acceptance of recommendations of Committees: 
 
The Board had accepted all recommendations of committees of the Board which are mandatorily required, 
during the financial year 2022-23. 
 
(I) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount: 
 
All the related party transactions, entered into by the Company, during the financial year, were in its ordinary 
course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 
 
Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the members to Notes to the financial statement which 
sets out related party disclosures. 
 
(J) The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 which have become applicable to 
the Company as a High Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”) w.e.f September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ 
basis until March 31, 2024 except Regulation 20(3A) and 21(3A) for which the Company has been providing 



the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance submitted to the 
Stock Exchange. 
 
(K) Code of Ethics: 
 
The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) for the Board Members and Senior 
Management personnel of the Company. The Code is available on the website of the Company at 
http://www.nagpurbetulhighway.in/p/code-of-conduct.html  
 
All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code. A 
declaration signed by the Chief Executive Officer to this effect is enclosed at the end of this Report. 
 
(L) VC, MD & CEO / CFO Certification 
 
The CEO and the CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations certifying 
that the financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements 
represent a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs. The said certificate is annexed as Annexure B and 
forms part of this report. 
 
(M) Unclaimed Amount: 
 
As on March 31, 2023, there is no unpaid amount with respect to the Interest / Dividend / Redemption of 
NCDs of the Company. 
 
(N) Unclaimed Shares lying in Demat Suspense Account 
 
The Company was not required to transfer any shares in Demat Suspense Account. 
 
This Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is in 
compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance as prescribed under Regulations 17 to 27, 62 
(1A) and para A, C, D and E of Schedule V of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable to the Company. 
 
Date: 22.05.2023                      
Place: New Delhi           

By Order of the Board 
 for Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited  

 
 

Abhishek Sehgal 
Director 

DIN: 09771954 
Add: C 4D/4-B, 
Janakpuri C-4, 
Delhi - 110058 

 
Ranveer Sharma 

Director 
DIN: 02483364 

Add: 1003B, Sterling Sea face, 
Near Poonam Chambers,  

Annie Besant Road, Worli,  
Mumbai - 400018 

 
 
 
 
  



ANNEXURE - A 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

INTRODUCTION 

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of every public company, having paid up capital of Rs. 10 Crores or more 
and/or Turnover of Rs. 100 Crores or more and/or Aggregate outstanding loans or borrowings or debentures or 
deposits exceeding Rs. 50 Crores, shall constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has 
constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee as required by the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
prescribed thereunder. 
 
This Committee and the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along 
with the applicable rules thereto. 
 
1.1. Purpose of the Policy 
 
The Key Objectives of the Committee are: 
 
(a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management. 
(b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for further 
evaluation. 
(c) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management. 
 
The Policy ensures that: 
(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of 
the quality required to run the Company successfully; 
(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmark; and 
(c) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company 
and its goals. 
 
1.2. Definitions 
1.2.1. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
1.2.2. “Company” means “Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited.” 
 
1.2.3. “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or employees of a company or of 
its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such directors, officers or employees, 
the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the company at a future date at a pre-determined 
price. 
 
1.2.4. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
1.2.5. “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” means Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in terms of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 
(As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are whole-time Key Managerial Personnel: 
(i) Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or the Manager and in their absence a whole-time Director; 
(ii) Company Secretary; and 
(iii) Chief Financial Officer.) 
 
1.2.6. “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors of the Company, 
constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules as prescribed 
thereunder. 
 



1.2.7. “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.” 
 
1.2.8. “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him 
and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961. 
 
1.2.9. “Senior Management” mean personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team 
excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of management one level below the executive directors, 
including all the functional heads. 
 
1.3. Interpretation 
Words and expressions used in this Policy shall have the same meanings respectively assigned to them in the 
Companies Act, 2013 or the rules framed thereon. 
 
2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
2.1. Role of the Committee 
(a) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out 
evaluation of every director’s performance. 
(b) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees. 
(c) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
(d) Devising a policy on Board diversity 
(e) Ensuring that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors; 
(f) All information about the Directors/ Managing Directors / Whole time Directors / Key Managerial Personnel i.e., 
background details, past remuneration, recognition or awards, job profile shall be considered and disclosed to 
shareholders, where required; 
(g) The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure the compliance of provisions under Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for appointing and fixing remuneration of Managing Directors / Whole-time Directors; 
(h) While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account financial position of the Company, trend 
in the industry, qualification, experience and past performance of the appointee; 
(i) The Committee shall be in a position to bring about objectivity in determining the remuneration package while 
striking the balance between the interest of the Company and the shareholders; 
 
2.2. Composition of the Committee 
(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three (3) Directors, all of whom shall be nonexecutive Directors and at 
least half shall be Independent. 
(b) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and applicable statutory requirement. 
(c) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting. 
(d) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 
(e) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 
 
2.3. Chairman of the Committee 
(a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 
(b) Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not Chair the Committee. 
(c) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst 
them to act as Chairman. 
(d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be present at the Annual General Meeting or may 
nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries. 
 
2.4. Frequency of the Meetings of the Committee 
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. 
 
2.5. Committee Member’s Interest 



(a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a 
meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 
(b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the 
Committee. 
 
2.6. Voting at the Meeting 
(a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members 
present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee. 
(b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 
 
2.7. Minutes of the Meeting 
Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the Chairman of the 
next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee 
meeting. 
 
3. APPLICABILITY 
This Policy is Applicable to: 
(a) Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent) 
(b) Key Managerial Personnel 
(c) Senior Management Personnel 
(d) Other employees as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
4. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
 
PERSONNEL 
 
4.1. Appointment criteria and qualifications 
(a) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, if any and OSE Group 
HR Policy, the Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 
person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her 
appointment. 
(b) The Committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and experience for the concerned 
position. 
(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director / Whole-time 
Director / Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. 
Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the 
approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice 
for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 
 
4.2. Term / Tenure 
4.2.1. Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial Personnel) 
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Personnel for a term not exceeding five years 
at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 
 
4.2.2. Independent Director 
(a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and 
will be eligible for re appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board's report. 
(b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director 
shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated 
with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 
(c) At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed 
companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company. 
(d) The maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a director shall not exceed ten. 



For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as director, directorship in private 
companies that are either holding or subsidiary company of a public company shall be included. 
 
4.3. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
The company shall familiarize the Independent Directors with the company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the 
company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model of the company, etc., through various 
programmes. 
 
4.4. Evaluation 
Subject to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee shall carry out the evaluation of Directors 
periodically. 
 
4.5. Removal 
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any 
other applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in 
writing, removal of a Director, KMP, subject to the provisions and compliance of the applicable laws, rules and 
regulations. 
 
4.6. Retirement 
The Director, KMP and Personnel of Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, 
Personnel of Senior Management in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement 
age, in the interest and for the benefit of the Company. 
 
5. PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL 
 
5.1. General 
(a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Personnel will be determined by the Committee 
and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to 
the approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.  
(b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managerial Personnel shall be as per the statutory provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 
(c) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the 
Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managerial Personnel, wherever 
required. 
(d) Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-time Director, Manager, 
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for indemnifying any of them against any liability 
in respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in 
relation to the company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable 
to any such personnel. 
 
5.2. Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management and Other Employees 
 
5.2.1. Fixed Pay 
Managerial Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
rules made thereunder for the time being in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, 
employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and 
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central 
Government, wherever required. 
 
5.2.2. Minimum Remuneration 
If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration 
to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not 
able to comply with such provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government. 



 
5.2.3. Provisions for excess remuneration 
If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess 
of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, 
where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for 
the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central 
Government. 
 
5.2.4. The remuneration to Personnel of Senior Management shall be governed by the OSE Group HR Policy. 
 
5.2.5. The remuneration to other employees shall be governed by the OSE Group HR Policy. 
 
5.3. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director 
 
5.3.1. Remuneration / Commission 
The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 
 
5.3.2. Sitting Fees 
The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board 
or Committee thereof. 
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013, 
per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time 
to time. 
The sitting fee paid to Independent Directors and Women Directors, shall not be less than the sitting fee payable to 
other directors. 
 
5.3.3. Limit of Remuneration / Commission 
Remuneration / Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not 
exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 
5.3.4. Stock Options 
An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 
 
6. DISCLOSURES 
The Company shall disclose the Policy on Nomination and Remuneration on group’s website www.orientalindia.com. 
 
7. AMENDMENT 
Any amendment or modification in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and any other applicable 
regulation relating to Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall automatically be applicable to the Company. 
 
--------------- 
  



ANNEXURE-B 
 
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) READ WITH PART-B OF SCHEDULE-II OF THE 
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
 
To 
The Board of Directors 
Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited 
 
As stipulated under Regulation 17(8) and Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, We Sharad Kumar Singh, Chief Executive Officer and Abhsihek Sehgal, 
Chief Financial Officer certify that:  
 
A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief:  
 
(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;  
 
(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with Indian Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.  
 
B. There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.  
 
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 
reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
have been disclosed to the Auditors and the steps have been taken or propose to be taken to rectify these 
deficiencies.  
 
D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:- 
(1) there has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;  
(2) there has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosures in 
the notes to the financial statements; and  
(3) we are not aware of any instances of significant fraud with involvement therein of the management or 
an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.  
 

Sd/- 
Abhishek Sehgal, Chief Financial Officer 

 
Sd/- 

Sharad Kumar Singh, Chief Executive Officer 
Date: 22/05/2023 
Place: New Delhi 

  



ANNEXURE-C 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(pursuant to Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015) 
 
To, 
The Members 
Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited 
Unit No. 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2,  
Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality District, Delhi Aerocity,  
near IGI Airport, New Delhi – 110037 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited having CIN U45400DL2010PLC203649 and having 
registered office at Unit No. 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2, Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality District, Delhi 
Aerocity, near IGI Airport, New Delhi – 110037 (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before 
us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 27 read with 
Regulation 53 and Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such other Statutory Authority: 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in 
Company* 

1 Mr. Abhishek Sehgal 09771954 13/02/2023 
2 Mr. Ranveer Sharma 02483364 06/10/2020 
3 Mr. Deepak Kukreja 00175365 01/06/2020 
4 Mr. Monika Kohli 06990318 01/06/2020 
5 Mr. Smita Rastogi 07813787 31/03/2022 
6 Mr. Nikhil Dhingra$ 07835556 06/01/2020 

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal. 
$ Mr. Nikhil Dhingra (DIN: 07835556) resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. January 30, 2023 
 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For C Gaur & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 
Date: 21/05/2023 Chetan Gaur 
Place: New Delhi (Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 37455 
CP No.: 19223 

UDIN: A037455E000345367 



 
ANNEXURE-D 

 
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

 
To, 
The Members 
Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited 
Unit No. 307A, 3rd floor, Worldmark 2,  
Asset Area No. 8, Hospitality District, Delhi Aerocity,  
near IGI Airport, New Delhi – 110037 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway 
Limited (“the Company”), for the year ended March 31, 2023, as prescribed in Regulations 17 to 27, 62 (1A) 
and para A, C, D and E of Schedule V of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR). 
 
We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s 
management and, our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 
mentioned SEBI LODR. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
This certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

For C Gaur & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 
Chetan Gaur 
(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 37455 
 Date: 21/05/2023 COP No.: 19223 
 Place: Delhi  UDIN: A037455E000345356 




































































































